## **City of Fort Lauderdale**

City Hall 100 North Andrews Avenue Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301 www.fortlauderdale.gov



### **Meeting Minutes - DRAFT**

Wednesday, October 5, 2016 1:30 PM

**City Commission Conference Room** 

## **City Commission Conference Meeting**

FORT LAUDERDALE CITY COMMISSION

JOHN P. "JACK" SEILER Mayor - Commissioner
DEAN J. TRANTALIS Vice Mayor - Commissioner - District II
BRUCE G. ROBERTS Commissioner - District I
ROBERT L. McKINZIE Commissioner - District III
ROMNEY ROGERS Commissioner - District IV

LEE R. FELDMAN, City Manager JOHN HERBST, City Auditor JEFFREY A. MODARELLI, City Clerk CYNTHIA A. EVERETT, City Attorney

#### **QUORUM ESTABLISHED**

Present: 5 - Commissioner Bruce G. Roberts, Vice Mayor Dean J. Trantalis, Commissioner Robert L. McKinzie, Commissioner Romney Rogers and Mayor John P. "Jack" Seiler

No public comments were submitted for this meeting.

#### **CALL TO ORDER**

Mayor Seiler called the meeting to order at 1:39 p.m.

**Also Present:** City Manager Lee R. Feldman, City Clerk Jeffrey A. Modarelli, City Attorney Cynthia Everett, City Auditor John Herbst, and Sergeant At Arms Captain Dana Swisher

#### **CITY COMMISSION REPORTS**

#### **Events and Matters of Interest**

Members of the Commission announced recent and upcoming events and matters of interest.

Mayor Seiler stated there were five items on the evening agenda that were suggested to be removed although technically the Commission can vote on them. He said if there were no objections, those items would be removed from tonight's Regular Meeting and deferred to the City Commission's Regular Meeting on October 18, 2016. City Manager Feldman announced those items as:

- R-3 Furniture Consignment Warehouse Plat (R-3) to be continued to the October 18, 2016, City Commission Regular Meeting.
- R-4 Tree House on Brickell Plat (R-4) to be continued to the October 18, 2016, City Commission Regular Meeting.
- R-5 NE 4th Avenue Lane Elimination (R-5) be continued to the October 18, 2016, City Commission Regular Meeting. It was also noted that due to Hurricane Matthew, FDOT had given the City an extension regarding this item.
- PH-1 YMCA Lease (PH-1) to be continued to the October 18, 2016, City Commission Regular Meeting.
- OFR-2 Vacation Rental Ordinance (OFR-2) to be continued to the October 18, 2016, City Commission Regular Meeting for the First Reading and November 15, 2016, for the Second Reading.

Additionally, City Clerk Modarelli stated that all presentations including the citizen's presentations had been canceled and everyone involved has been contacted and notified.

#### **Community Policing Program**

Vice Mayor Trantalis announced the City had received a grant to add eight additional officers to the Community Policing Program to keep crime down in the City.

#### **Dental Study Club**

Vice Mayor Trantalis noted he had attended a meeting and spoke to this group who are very engaged in the community and the attendees inquired about many items involving the City.

#### **Upgrading City Flag and Key to the City**

The Commission and City Manager Feldman discussed upgrading the City Flag and the Key to the City given to Sister Cities and other organizations and individuals for special ceremonial recognition. Vice Mayor Trantalis suggested the possibility of creating a coffee table book that gives an overview of what the City has to offer and the attributes of the City. Further discussions ensued on this topic.

#### **Kick-Off of Pink Shirt Campaign**

Vice Mayor Trantalis discussed his attendance at the Kick-Off of the Pink Shirt Campaign in recognition of October as Breast Cancer Awareness Month.

#### Florida Panthers Pep Rally

Mayor Seiler requested City Staff inquire as to the speaking schedule for this event to ensure that all Commission members could attend this pep rally during the same timeframe.

#### Noise Issues at Shooters Bar/Restaurant on the Intracoastal

Vice Mayor Trantalis raised his concern with the reoccurring problem of noise issues at Shooters Bar/Restaurant on the Intracoastal Waterway. Discussions ensued on this topic including City Manager Feldman noting that the City's Police Detail Officers are working in this area to help address and regulate this issue. City Manager Feldman also stated the City is looking into purchasing decibel meters to help the Police Detail Officers address the noise levels in the area. Vice Mayor Trantalis requested the Police Detail Officers have the authority to get involved and be proactive.

#### **Federal Legislative Report**

Vice Mayor Trantalis noted his disappointment in the Federal

Legislative Report. It is too generic and does not focus on the City. He further commented on the need for the City to get its money's worth from the lobbying firms it employs. He stated this report should focus on specific items that impact our City and should not be just a year-end summary of all legislative items. City Manager Feldman gave examples of specific items relating to the City and further discussions ensued. Vice Mayor Trantalis recommended City Manager Feldman bring this to the City's lobbyist's attention.

#### \$600,000 Grant for Police Needs

Vice Mayor Trantalis discussed the issue of the City receiving a \$600,000 grant for the City's Police and what the City will do with these funds. City Manager Feldman stated the RFP for the City's Police Body Cameral Pilot Program is due on October 21, 2016. City Manager Feldman explained how things would proceed during that Pilot Program noting the high costs involved with the storage and staffing to manage both retrieval and redaction issues. Additionally, City Manager Feldman explained the \$600,000 grant is over a three year period and is the maximum. He stated the actual cost of the Police Body Camera Program is over \$2,000,000. City Manager Feldman also noted the grant funding must be expended over a 24 month period. Further discussions ensued on the City's policy, having a firm plan, avoiding a situation similar to the red-light cameras, and addressing the input received from the community and various organizations. City Manager Feldman stated all of that input would be brought back to the Commission for discussion once received by all those involved.

#### **Beach CRA**

Vice Mayor Trantalis noted his discussions with Bertha Henry, Broward County Manager, regarding the Beach CRA. He stated that during this conversation, it was Ms. Henry's impression that when the extension was made she thought it included the continued collection of Tax Increment Financing (TIF) money after the deadline. Vice Mayor Trantalis stated he explained to Ms. Henry that it was not the City's intention to collect more TIF funds, rather the City wished to extend the time to spend funds it has already collected following the expiration of the program.

Vice Mayor Trantalis noted Ms. Henry's reply that this was a completely different subject and she would not be adverse. Vice Mayor Trantalis brought this to the attention of City Manager Feldman as he believed there was some misunderstanding on this issue. Further discussions ensued including researching the legality of this matter and the need for deadlines to get things accomplished. City Attorney Everett commented on the legality of this matter at the

County level.

#### Fire Bond Issue - Fred Stresau Correspondence

Discussions ensued on the correspondence each Commission member received from Fred Stresau, Board Member - City's Board of Adjustment. Commissioner Rogers suggests having a meeting to ascertain the facts involved to clarify any misinformation. Mayor Seiler requested a meeting to follow-up on this issue with the City's Board of Adjustment.

#### Lauderdale Park - Sailboat Bend

Vice Mayor Trantalis raised the issue of the remodeling of Lauderdale Park in the historic Sailboat Bend area and replacing trees and historic lights in this area. He noted the residents in this area are satisfied with the trees. However, they are upset that the historic lights that are being replaced. Vice Mayor Trantalis stated the residents would like the historic lights put back. City Manager Feldman stated this matter just came to his attention yesterday afternoon and City Staff is still researching this issue. City Manager Feldman noted the replaced lights were the original gas lights that had been converted to electricity and no longer met code. This was the reason for replacement with similar looking lights. Further discussions ensued. Vice Mayor Trantalis requested City Staff recover the original light fixtures, have them restored and put back.

#### **County Water Board Request**

Vice Mayor Trantalis, as a member of the County Water Board, noted Broward County had made a request of the City Commission to sign on to a suggested letter the County has provided in support of the continued construction of the C51 Reservoir. Vice Mayor Trantalis also stated he was not aware this was a controversial issue and asked City Manager Feldman if he knew of any pertinent information relating to this matter. City Manager Feldman stated he knew of the program but was not aware of any recent requests being made to the Office of the City Manager. Vice Mayor Trantalis gave the letter along with the email from Dr. Jennifer Jurado, Director of Natural Resources Planning and Management Division of Broward County, to City Manager Feldman who stated the last time discussions occurred they were requesting \$10,000,000 in funding from the City. Further discussions ensued.

#### All Aboard Florida Railroad Crossings

Commissioner Rogers raised the issue of residents complaining about the rumbling when driving over the railroad crossing at Broward Boulevard after work done by All Aboard Florida. Other members of the Commission said they had also received such complaints. Commissioner Rogers asked City Manager Feldman to look into the matter to see if the work is completed or if it can be addressed by All Aboard Florida. Commissioner McKinzie noted the railroad crossing at Sistrunk Boulevard also has the same issue and is dangerous. Further discussions ensued on this issue and safe zones along the Brightline route.

#### **Penny Sales Tax**

Discussions ensued on the efforts and upcoming events to inform the public about the Penny Sales Tax Referendum on the November 2016 Ballot. Commissioner Roberts noted the Speakers Form which is being made available to all City homeowners associations and additional events which he has attended to inform the public on this issue.

Vice Mayor Trantalis stated he had spoken and explained this item to the Central Beach Alliance and the importance of voting in November. Further discussions ensued on the Penny Sales Tax and the City continuing to take advantage of all public relations opportunities to inform the public on this important issue.

Additional discussions ensued later in the meeting on this topic including the amount of the City's annual proportionate share should the ballot initiative be enacted. City Manager Feldman stated it would be approximately \$15,000,000 annually. Discussions ensued on the calculations should this amount be bonded, how much the City could retrieve in the money market, and how those bonded funds could be utilized in the City.

# State Mandate for Retrofitting Fire Sprinkler Systems in the Non-Common Areas of the City's Condominiums

Commissioner Roberts raised the issue of the mandatory 40-year fire sprinkler system retrofitting requirement for the non-common areas of condominium buildings. Commissioner Robert noted that there was formerly an opt-out for this requirement that is no longer in the statute. He stated that State Senator George Moraitis is working to change this statute in Tallahassee to create an opt-out clause and has requested the City Commission's support and to work with him on this issue. Further discussions ensued and City Attorney Everett requested a copy of the letter to research and address the issue with Senator Moraitis's office stating she would get back to City Manager Feldman to address this matter with the City's legislative lobbyists.

#### **Pension Board Investment Presentation**

Commissioner Roberts requested City Manager Feldman give the Commission a presentation on the passive side of pension investment

to enable the City Commission to have objective criteria of both active and passive investment approaches

## Forum on Use of Public Lands for Private Development Petition and the Petition to Halt Further Development within the City

Commissioner Rogers noted his attendance along with Commission McKinzie at the Community Forum on these two petitions. Commissioner Rogers noted there was a full house, the two speakers did a good job of discussing all of the issues and there was a healthy discussion. He recommended the Commission bring this back for discussion to bring the issue to closure. Further discussions ensued.

#### **Transportation Management Association (TMA) Event**

Mayor Seiler thanked Commissioner Rogers and Commissioner Roberts for their input and work with the transportation issues within the Greater Fort Lauderdale area and their participation at the TMA Event.

Mayor Seiler raised an issue for discussion on the early suspension of public transportation specifically the City's Trolley, on Wednesday, October 5th during the City's preparation for Hurricane Matthew. There was agreement that the Trolley should have remained open on Wednesday as it was necessary for people to get home. Mayor Seiler recommended that this policy is revisited.

#### Flagler Village Area Development

Mayor Seiler and Vice Mayor Trantalis noted their attendance at the Elements event in the downtown Flagler area and the level of excitement from the City's next generation that is driving business to the City. Discussions ensued on the further development in this area. Commissioner Rogers raised the issue of the Greyhound Bus Company upgrading their station in the Flagler Village area. Vice Mayor Trantalis noted the developers have spoken to Greyhound about relocating their station.

#### **Fire Expo Presentation**

Mayor Seiler noted his participation along with Commissioner McKinzie at the Fire Expo. Mayor Seiler acknowledged the high level of respect that exists for the City's Fire Department. He stated the attendees who trained and learned best practices from our City's Fire Department personnel included firefighters from cities in Guatemala, Panama, Ecuador, and Argentina. Mayor Seiler recognized and noted the City is grateful for the high level of respect others have for the City's public safety officials from the Fire Department and Police Department.

#### **International City/County Management Association**

Mayor Seiler noted his and Commissioner Roberts's attendance at the swearing in of City Manager Feldman as the President of the International City/County Management Association in Kansas City stating this was an honor, an accomplishment, and a personal achievement for City Manager Feldman. Commissioner Roberts noted City Manager Feldman's efforts in taking the City to the forefront of many great initiatives as noted by those in attendance at this event. Further discussions ensued on the Kansas City Streetcar System.

#### **CONFERENCE REPORTS**

None.

#### **OLD/NEW BUSINESS**

#### **BUS-1** <u>16-1202</u> Police Department Informational Presentation

Assistant Police Chief Major Michael Gregory addressed the Commission giving the first part of the City's Police Department Presentation. He noted the new Online Police Servicing instituted this calendar year as stated in the President Obama's 21st Century Policing Initiative. He also noted the inclusion of suggestions, comments and recommendations from the City's 2015 Neighborhood Survey to reduce crime, increase police visibility in the City's neighborhood, and input from last year's Multi-Focus Community Policing Assessment. Comments, questions and discussions from the Commission ensued following the presentation.

# A copy of Assistant Police Chief Major Michael Gregory's portion of the Police Department presentation is attached to these minutes.

Following Assistant Police Chief Major Michael Gregory's portion of the Police Department's Presentation, City Manager Feldman introduced Police Captain Dana Swisher who gave the second part of the presentation. Captain Swisher's portion of the presentation focused on the history of the Flakka issue and other illegal narcotics in the nation and the City. Captain Swisher also gave specific details regarding these problems and solutions currently being pursued to address these problems. Comments, questions and discussions ensued from the Commission during the presentation.

A copy of Police Captain Dana Swisher's portion of the Police Department presentation is attached to these minutes. Mayor Seiler recognized Mr. Charles King, 105 N. Victoria Park Road, who addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding this item.

#### BUS-2 16-1214

High Consumption and Meter Reading Discussion

City Manager Feldman explained this discussion is to address the issue of high water consumption in the City and what he as City Manager can do to make adjustments to water and sewer account billings for unexplained high consumption water bills. City Manager Feldman introduced Kirk Buffington, Finance Director for the City, who began the discussion on City Staff procedures in this area.

Mr. Buffington introduced several individuals from City Staff including Arnette Torrence, Utility Billing/Revenue Collections Supervisor, and Rick Johnson, Public Works Department. Mr. Buffington stated Mr. Johnson oversees the Utilities Distribution meter readers and Collection Systems Managers, as well as Bermex, Inc., the third-party contractor the City uses to outsource its meter reading.

Mr. Buffington noted the purpose of today's presentation is to begin a dialogue to ascertain ideas as to what City Staff can do and how the City Commission would like City Staff to handle high-water consumption spikes. He noted that the CAM for this item outlines how the City currently handles these issues according to the City's ordinances, things other cities are doing, and some recommendations for the Commission to consideration. Mr. Buffington requested input from the Commission.

Vice Mayor Trantalis began the discussion giving examples of spikes in high water consumption with no evidence of overconsumption, such as a leakage. He also noted residents in this situation must hire a plumber at their expense to determine if the plumbing system is operating correctly. Vice Mayor Trantalis stated the City's current remedy is to give customers a small discount which can be paid over time but not a full refund. Mr. Buffington confirmed this is the City's current method of handling these occurrences.

Mayor Seiler emphasized the City needs to come up with a system that works stating it is not always the fault of the City but can be at times. Further discussions ensued on the possibility of meters malfunctioning, the development of more expeditious procedures to follow to address this issue, and the need for a City Staff member to be designated to resolve these matters.

City Manager Feldman noted in one instance that the Master Meter

was not functioning correctly for a period and was eventually replaced. Further discussions ensued on this topic, the need for more flexibility, and effective communications with the party involved (both verbal and written with copies to Commission members) when a malfunction is discovered in order to explain the circumstances involved in the perceived overcharge. Further discussions and comments ensued on how to resolve the unusually high usage bills including the calculation of a 12-month average, and in extreme cases the review of the situations on a case by case basis.

Commissioner McKinzie stated that City Staff does not have a "menu" of options it can use to resolve these unexplainable high consumption meter readings. Commissioner Roberts recommended a cost averaging methodology that would be fair to everyone.

Vice Mayor Trantalis stated any changes to allow City Manager Feldman to make adjustments in the matters will require a change in the City's Ordinance. Mayor Seiler asked for a consensus on how to move forward.

City Attorney Everett asked if the City has data on the accounts and associated details of each situation to ascertain the extent of the problem. Mr. Buffington stated he could provide those types of reports to City Attorney Everett regarding meter replacement and what the City has done out of the norm for adjustments. Discussions ensued on how the City of Orlando is handling these issues.

City Auditor Herbst recommended consideration of eliminating the sewage charge. City Manager Feldman discussed how the system currently works. City Manager Feldman recommended the City pass an ordinance allowing the City to use common sense when addressing and resolving these issues. He noted, however, there is no way that the City can codify the unexplained consumption. Vice Mayor stated he did not feel the burden should be on the homeowner. Discussions regarding the costs of the various types of water meters used throughout the City ensued.

City Manager Feldman noted that as part of the City's energy savings program, one of the City's vendors, Siemens, is proposing swapping out the City's current meters with electronic, real-time wifi enabled smart meters. This would allow residents to see real-time usage and would be much more accurate. Moreover, he stated the City's additional revenue would offset the cost of the smart meters. Further discussions ensued on implementing this 12 year capitalized project.

Mr. Buffington stated his department, working in conjunction with the City Attorney's Office, would come back to the Commission with a proposed ordinance on this item.

Mayor Seiler recognized Pam Kane, 2340 SW 14th Court, who addressed the Commission with her comments, concerns, and questions on this item giving her example of this type of experience and suggesting the meter readers should notify the resident that something appears to be incorrect.

Mr. Buffington stated for the record the City does not estimate anyone's bill and every meter in the City is read every month. He also stated that some of the responsibilities of the meter reader are to make sure the meter is covered and is readable. Unusual water meter communications with residents are done via a door hanger left at the property. Additionally, the meter reader notifies the City's Public Works Department when they return to their office.

Mr. Johnson stated if the meter reader notices high consumption at the time of the read, they will go back out and read the meter a second time. If they notice a high consumption at the second reading, they will typically knock on the door. Further discussions ensued on the door-hanger notice that is placed on the property door. Ms. Kane stated there was no notice put on her door. Mayor Seiler agreed that he thought Ms. Kane raised a good point. Commissioner Roberts requested proper oversight by City Staff to ensure that door hanger notices are used to notify residents of these situations. He recommended checking this on a regular basis. Further discussions ensued on the City accepting liability in situations such as these and other aspects of this issue.

At the request of Mayor Seiler, Mr. Buffington stated City Staff would provide an audit of these types of over consumption matters going back 12 months.

Mayor Seiler recognized Mr. Charles King, 105 N. Victoria Park Road, who addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding this item.

#### BUS-3 16-1204 Charter Revision Board Discussion

Commissioner Roberts raised the issue about proposed changes in the City's Charter to enable the City Commission to be more effective and efficient. He noted that the City Charter does not include a requirement for a periodic review of the Charter and would like to see this provision added to require a review of the City's Charter every five or ten years similar to other cities and the county. Further comments and discussions ensued.

Vice Mayor Trantalis noted there were recent City Charter changes that were proposed and put on the ballot in 2012 regarding elections and other proposed changes regarding City Charter Officer Positions and the ability to hire City Auditor Herbst.

City Attorney Everett commented on the duties of the Charter Review Board to regularly review the City Charter. Mayor Seiler recommended convening the Charter Review Board to review the City Charter. There as a consensus by the Commission reconvene the Charter Review Board.

City Manager Feldman requested Conference Item BUS-5 be moved to the October 18, 2016, Conference Meeting. Mayor Seiler agreed that Conference Item BUS-5 would be brought to the City Commission at the October 18, 2016, City Commission Conference Meeting.

#### **EXECUTIVE CLOSED DOOR ANNOUNCEMENT**

City Attorney Everett requested Mayor Seiler announce the cancellation of today's Executive Closed Door Session due to the impending arrival of Hurricane Matthew.

Mayor Seiler announced the cancellation of the Executive Closed Door Session to hear the following case:

Royal Ellison v. City of Fort Lauderdale - Case No.: CACE 16-007414 (08)

BUS-4 <u>16-1203</u>

Conflict of Interest Policy for Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) and Beach Business Improvement District (BID) Advisory Committee Members

Mayor Seiler stated it was Commissioner Roger's recommendation to bring this issue forward and was a good idea. Mayor Seiler noted the request of someone to step down from a Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) Advisory Board rather than recuse themselves was significant and it takes away individuals who have a vested interest in improving the CRA area. Vice Mayor Trantalis noted CRA Advisory Board members should not profit from its recommendations. Further discussions ensued on the importance of leaving the Board in its entirety and having CRA Advisory Board members recuse themselves rather than stepping down. Commissioner Rogers raised the issue of CRA Advisory Board members who are requesting a waiver from the CRA Board, or they would resign.

Jonathan Brown, Business and Economic Development and Area Manager of the Northwest Progresso Flagler Heights (NWPFH) CRA, stated the CRA Advisory Board members had requested a waiver from voting to allow them to remain part of the CRA Advisory Board and also seek CRA incentives or participate in CRA Programs. Commissioner Rogers stated it seems like common sense that there should be a difference between the CRA Board's responsibilities as Commissioners and a voluntary CRA Advisory Board member. After Commissioner Rogers' discussions with City Attorney Everett, Ms. Everett stated this is governed by the statute which clearly outlines what is permissible. CRA Advisory Board members can fall under these same guidelines. Commissioner Rogers asked if there is not statutory relief for an Advisory Board members who volunteers, and if there is there something the City Commission can do with regard to the City's ordinances to maintain the goal of having good, qualified individuals on the City's Advisory Boards providing them relief other than giving them a blanket waiver. Discussions ensued on a previous matter involving Sixth Street Plaza and not having the City be put into this same type of situation again. Vice Mayor Trantalis concurred.

Commissioner Rogers suggested some "middle ground" that is legally possible for the City Commission to acknowledge the fact that CRA Advisory Board members are volunteers who are encouraged to serve on these Advisory Boards without totally hamstringing them from their livelihood. Further discussion ensued on language in the statutes and the ability of City Commission members to recuse themselves from a vote on a particular item without coming to the City Commission for a blanket waiver. Commissioner Rogers noted the importance of City Commission members knowing the issues and the area and integrating this into something that protects all involved parties.

Vice Mayor Trantalis noted allowing Board members to recuse themselves in a particular vote if they would profit from it is one aspect. However, he noted that there is a camaraderie on boards that grows over time and board members do each other favors. Mayor Seiler noted this is a legitimate issue and it a slippery slope, and the reason individuals are on the CRA Advisory Board is due to having a vested interest in the neighborhood. Further discussions ensued with Vice Mayor Trantalis noting CRA Board members should not apply for items such as funding or site plan approval.

Commissioner McKinzie noted all City Commission members would have an appearance of a conflict of interest when things are closely examined. He suggested having a Board Workshop to establish criteria to address this issue. Vice Mayor Trantalis also recommended a Board Workshop. Further discussions ensued.

Mayor Seiler suggested discussing this with Advisory Board members during a workshop. He noted the Florida Statute that addresses how to deal with this issue. Additionally, the City Commission could make a policy decision to waive this as allowed in the last paragraph of Florida Statute 112.313(12). However, Mayor Seiler did not feel it is in the best interests of the City to waive that portion of the statute in this manner noting, however, it might be the only solution. Further comments and discussions ensued.

Assistant City Attorney Candace Duff pointed out that each waiver has to be done in each particular instance. It cannot be a blanket waiver and must be done on a case by case basis. Further discussions, comments, and questions ensued on this topic. Ms. Duff clarified these questions on the situations regarding recusals, waivers and situations requiring both a recusal and a waiver. Ms. Duff also gave specific examples of the various types of scenarios for the Commission members.

Mr. Brown gave an example of the waiver request from Jacqueline Reed that was denied. Further discussions ensued on possible monetary benefits received by the Advisory Boards members and the need for the boards to have experts in the field on the board. Vice Mayor Trantalis noted the distinction of funding going to an organization as opposed to an individual. Further discussions ensued on codifying incidents where a waiver is normal, customary, and automatic versus having a closer examination and viewpoint due to the specific circumstances and set of facts involved. Commissioner Rogers raised the point as to what would give direction to both the applicant for the waiver and the City Commission that votes on the waiver. Vice Mayor Trantalis reiterated Commissioner Roberts' suggestion to keep the ordinance the way it is and the City Commission creating a policy when it is appropriate to grant a waiver. He noted his position that it is more appropriate to grant a waiver to an organization rather than an individual.

City Attorney Everett suggested the Commission have a further discussion to reach some conclusions as it requires a decision for each instance and the Commissioner may have differing viewpoints. This necessitates the policy being very general to take into account that waivers would be granted on a case by case basis.

Mayor Seiler recommended going to the League of Cities to find out the policies of other CRA Boards to determine how to move forward. Jonathan Brown confirmed he would address this recommendation. Further discussions ensued on the need to be consistent.

Mayor Seiler recognized Mr. Charles King, 105 N. Victoria Park Road, who addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding this item.

BUS-5 16-1018 Update on Citywide Canal Dredging Effort

Moved to City Commission Conference Meeting of October 18, 2016.

#### **BOARDS AND COMMITTEES**

#### **BD-1** 16-1189 Board and Committee Vacancies

Discussions ensued on upcoming City Board and Committee appointments including a vacancy on the Northwest Progressive Flagler Heights CRA, and nominating the following individuals for the noted board:

Val Steele for the City's Board of Adjustment; and Mark Budwig for the Economic Development Advisory Board.

City Clerk Modarelli read the appointments for tonight's Regular Meeting Resolution appointing board and committee members as noted below:

#### AFFORDABLE HOUSING ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Wilson Atkinson is appointed to the Affordable Housing Advisory Committee (category: One who actively represents employers in the City of Fort Lauderdale) to complete an unexpired term ending 12/1/2017 or until his successor has been appointed.

#### **AVIATION ADVISORY BOARD**

Joshua Kroon is appointed to the Aviation Advisory Board for a one year term beginning 11/3/2016 and ending 11/2/2017 or until his successor has been appointed.

#### **EDUCATION ADVISORY BOARD**

Dale Fulton and Stefan Weiss are appointed to the Education Advisory Board for a one year term beginning October 5, 2016 and ending October 4, 2017 or until their successor has been appointed.

#### **CHARTER REVISION BOARD**

Wilson Atkinson is appointed to the Charter Revision for a one year term beginning October 5, 2016 and ending October 4, 2017 or until his successor has been appointed.

#### **COMMUNITY APPEARANCE BOARD**

Leslie Fordham is appointed to the Community Appearance Board for a one year term beginning November 4, 2016 and ending November 3, 2017 or until her successor has been appointed.

#### **COMMUNITY SERVICES BOARD**

Joseph Van de Bogart is appointed to the Community Services Board for a one year term beginning November 4, 2016 and ending November 3, 2017 or until his successor has been appointed.

#### **CITY MANAGER REPORTS**

None.

#### **ADJOURN**

There being no further business before the City Commission, Mayor Seiler adjourned the Conference Meeting at 4:57 p.m.